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MNOTICE

Motice is hereby glven that the 26" annual General Meeting of the Shoreholders of Caspian Impact
Investments Private Limited [“the Company™ ) will be held on Thursday, July 20, 2017 at 11.00 a.m, at
the registered office of the Company at 3™ Floor, 8-2-596/5/8/1, Road No: 10, Banfara Hills,
Hyderabad - 500034, Telangana, India to transact the following business:-

CRDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the Audited of the Com
gnded March 31, 2017 and the report of the Board of Director’s ('Board’] and Auditor’s thereon

To pass with or without modification the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company far the finandal year ended
March 31, 2017 comprising Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2017, Statement of Profit and Loss for
the financial year ended March 31, 2017, Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended March
31, 2017 along with Notes ta Financial Statements and the Reports of Auditors’ and Board thereon
as placed befare the Meeting be and are hereby approved and adopted.”

2. Ratiflcation of appoi 5. Wallker Chandi Chartzred Accountants, as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2017-18

To pass with or without madification the following resolution as Ordinary Besolution

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 Section 142 and other applicable
provisions, If any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, including any
statutory modification|s} or re-enactment{s} thereof for the time being in force, the appaintment of
M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartsred Accountants, Hyderabad (ICAI Registration No
D01076N/N500013) a5 the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for 3 consecutive years
commencing from the conclusion of 28" Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 27 Annual
Genaral Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2018 on remuneration (plus service tax, out-
of-pocket, etc.) as may be mutuzlly agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the
Auditors, be and is hereby ratified,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one Director of the Company and Ms. Vandana Bhatia, Company
secretary be and is hereby severally authorized by the Campany to undertake such acts, deeds and
matters, including but not limited to making requisite filings with the Registrar of Companies that
may be required to give effect 1o this resolution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. To approve ent of Commission to Independent Directors of the Company for the financial
year 2016-17

To pass with or without modification the following resalution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 197{7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder, including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
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force, consent of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to pay the following commission to the
Independent Directors of the Company for the financial year 2016-17:

Name of the Director INR_ |
hr. Mahesh Kanumury 3,50,000
Mr. Mathew Titus 3,50,000 |
_Mr. K.P. Ramesh Menon 3,50,000
| Ms. Suvalaxmi Chakraborty 3,50,000 |

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company [excepl Independent Directors} or
Chief Financlal Officer or Company Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such
acts, things and deed to give effect to the above resolution.”

To a miss &n irectors Com the fi |
year 2017-18 and for next two financial years

To pass with or without modification the following resolution as Ordipary Resalution:

YRESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 197(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder, Including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactmentis] thereof for the time being in
force, consent of the Sharehalders be and is hereby accorded to pay commission to the Independent
Directors of the Company up to INR 20,00,000 each for the financial year 2017-18 and for next two
financlal years and such commission shall be payable in the following manner;

For independent director who is not a chalr of any | Maximum up to INR 2,50,000
commlites
For independent director who Is chair of any one | Maximum up to INR 5,100,000
Emmittee

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company {except Independent Directors) or
CFO or Company Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, things and
deed to give effect to the above resoiution.”

By the Order of the Board
For Casplan Impact Investments Private Limited

-~ )
Dated ; 19.06.2017 ana Bhatia

Place :Hyderabad Company Secretary
Membership No. — AZTT7E



Mates:

1. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of Special
Business as set out above to be transacted at the Meeting s annexed hereto and forms part of
thiz notice,

2. Ashareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vots instead of himself and the proxy need not be a Shareholder of the company, Proxy
farm duly filled in and completed in all respect in order to be effective must be lodged with the
Company at [ts registered office not less than forty-eight hours before the time fized for the
nMeeting (on or before Tuesday, July 18, 2017, 11.00 a.m. I5T}.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of a maximum of 50 Shareholders and holding in aggregate
nat mare than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. A Shareholder holding maore than
10% of the total share capital of the Company carrylng vating rights may appoint a single persan
a5 proxy, provided that the person does not act as proxy for any other person or Sharehaolder,

4. Corporate Shareholder intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution to the Company, autharizing their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT TO SPECIAL BUSINESS
{Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item Mo 3.

The Board in its Meeting held on February 23, 2016 approved the commission paid to Independent
Directors of the Company for the financial year 2016-17 up to 2% of the net profits of the Company
or INR 1,400,000 whichever s lewer and such commission shall be payable in the following manner:

For independent director who is not a chair of any | Maximum up to INR 250,000 |
committes

For Independent director who is chair of any one | Maximum up to INR 350,000 J
commities

The Company is proposing to pay the following commission to the Independent Directors of the
Company subject to the approval of Shareholders for the financial year 2016-17 which is exceeding
the aforesaid limit:

Name of the Director | INR

Mr. Mahesh Kanumury | 3,50,000
M, Mathew Titus 3,50,000
Mr, K.P. Ramesh Menon 3,50,000
Ms, Suvalaxmi Chakraborty 3,504,000

Mone of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives, except all of the
independent Directors of the Company to whom the resolution relates are concerned or interested
in the Resolution mentioned at ltem Na. 3 of the notice,

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in ltem No. 3 for the approval of the Shareholders.
Item Mo 4.

section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 permits payment of remuneration to Independent Directors
of a Company by way of commission, if the Company authorizes such payment by way of a
resolution of Shareholders,

Considering the rich experience and expertise brought to the Board by the Independent Directors, it

is proposed that remuneration up to INR 20,00,000 each for the financial year 2017-18 and for next
two financial years shall be payable to the Independent Directors in the following manner:

For independent director who is not a chair of any | Maximum up to INR 2,50,000 \
committes
For independent director who is chair of any one | Maximum up to INR 5,00,000 J
committes

None of the Directars, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives, except all of the
Independent Directors of the Company to whom the resolution relates are concerned or interested
in the Resalution mentioned at Item Na. 4 of the notice.



The Board recommends the resolution set forth in 1tem No. 4 for the approval of the Shareholders.

By the Order of the Board
For Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited

e
Dated ; 19.06.2017 Vandana Bhatia
Place :Hyderabad Company Secretary

Membership No, — A27778
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Prowy form
{Pursuant to section 105{8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3} of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN y UGS993TE1991PTO01349]
Mame of the company ; Cespian Impact Investments Private Limited
Registerad office : 3" Floor, B-2-596/5/8/1, Road No.10, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad - 500034, Andhra Pradesh, india
ame of the member ' mail Id;
tered address ofio Mo:
I, betng the member of shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:
Hame
Addrass
E-mail 1d:
Signature:

And whose signature Is appended below as my proxy to sttend and vote {on a poll] for me end on my behalf 2t the
Annusl General Meating of the Company, to be held on Thursday the 20° day of July 2017 at 11.00 a.m, at the
registered office address of the Company at 3" Floor, B-2-596/5/B/1, Road Mo.10, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad -
500034, Telangana, India and at any adjournment thereof In respect of such reselutions as are Indicated below:

5 No _ Resolution
1, To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financlal year ended

March 31, 2017 and the report of the Board of Directar’s {'Board') and Auditor's thereon

S Ratification of appaintment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Ca LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory

Auditars of the Company for the financial year 2017-18

3, To approve payment of Commission to Independent Directors of the Company for the financial year

2016-17 _ _

4 To approve payment of Commission to Independent Directors of the Company for the financial year

2017-1B and for next two financial years

Signed this day of 017 Affix a
Signature of Sharehaolder Rs.1/-
Aevenue
Stamp
Signature of proxy holder
Motes:

L This form of prexy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours befare the commencement of the mesting.
Z. A proxy need not be a member of the Company,
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BOARD'S REFORT

To the Members,
Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting to you the Twenty-sixth Annual Report of the Company
together with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2017

Dverview

Casplan Impact Investments Private Limited [“the Company”} is a company domiciled in India and
registered under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is also registerad with the
Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") as a non-deposit-taking Non-Banking Finance Company ("NBFC”), The
Company operates as a Loan Company In line with RBI guidelines. The Company is engaged in
making irvestments In the form of equity and debt in impact investing sectors including financial
inclusion, affordable housing, food and agriculture, clean energy, healthcare and others [considarad
as general impact). The Company has engaged the services of Caspian Impact |nvestment Adviser
Private Limited ("Caspian™), as lts investment adviser to provide investment advisory services to the
Company, Casplan is licensed as an Investment Adviser with Securities Exchange Board af India
I"SEBI").

During the financial year, the Company engaged in lending activity, making loans to institutions
engaged in the above target sectors. The Company extended 50 loans across these six farget sectors
during this financial year.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Amowunt i INR)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16*
Gross Incoing 385,670,199 | 234,148,022
Profit hefore laterest, Depreciation, exceptional items and Tax 258,737,669 175,141,623
Finance Charges 153,584,339 105,941,434
Depreciation/amortization -1 1437014
Profit befare exceptional [tems, tax and Prior period iterms 59,153,330 67,563,175
Excoptional items (net) ; . |
Profit before Tax and Prior perlod items 58,153,330 67,563,175
| Less: Provision for Taxes 16,710,000 11,387,989
Less: Tad faor earfier years (net) [4.138,073) (8,240,658)
Less: Deferred tax expense / {credit) 5,688,724 (2.730,668)
Profit after Tax . 40,892,679 67,146,512
Pa:d up Equity Capital 1,015,040 47,482 670
Prefarence Share Capital 2 5,400,000
Reserves and Surplus 1,182,773,652 | 750 775,907
Ket waorth 1,243,788 /92 Eﬂ!,dﬁﬂ.&?l
Earnings per snare (Face vaiue of each share is INR 1a}
- Basic__ _ 7.34 | 12.73 |

Casplan Impact Investments Private Limited
{Fermary Belwethes Mucrafrance Fuml Frivate Umited|
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| - Diluted [ 7.34 | 12.73 |
{ *} Previous year's flaures bave been regroupedirearranged, to conform to the presentation for the current Ve,

2. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS , IF ANY:

There was no change in the nature of business and the Company continued ta carry on its business
35 a Non-Banking Finance Company {NBFC) within the RBI regulated NBFC organisational framewnrk,

However, during the year, the Company adopted a new set of Articles of Assaciation in substitution,
and to entire exclusion of the regulations contained In the existing Articles af Association of the
Company. This was primarily done to align the Articles of Association with the new Companles Act,
2013 and rules thereunder.

3. DIVIDEND

The Company has not recommended any dividend for the Equity Sharehalders for this year.
However, during the year, the Company paid interim dividend on 520,000 cumulative compulsory
convertible preference shares ("CCCPS”) held by Casplan @ 10% p.a, amounting to INR 987,288
{Including INR 520,000 for FY 2015-16)

4. TRANSFER TO STATUTORY RESERVE

As per Section 45(IC} of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Company has transferred a sum of
INR 8,178,536 to Statutory Reserve,

5. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company has remained unchanged during the year at INR
485,000,000 divided into 7,500,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each and 41,000,000 Preference
Shares of INR 10/- each,

The paid-up capital of the Company underwent a change during the year as the Company issued
1,335,871 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up at premium of INR 289.43 per share aggregating
to INR 399,999,853.53 to S5I08I Trustee Company Limited A/c Samridhi Fund. Further, the 520,000
CCCPS held by Casplan were converted into 17,366 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up at
premium of INR 289.43 per share.

Consequentfy, the paid-up equity capital of the Company as on March 31, 2017 was INR 61,015,040
comprising &,101,504 equity shares of INR 10/- each, The change in the Paid-up Equity Share Capital
of the Company was as follows:

Particulars | No.of Shares Amount {in INR)
Opening Balance as on April 1, 2016 4,748,267 47,482,670
Add: Issued during the year 1,353,237 13,532,370 |
Closing Balance as on March 31, 2017 6,101,504 61,015,040




6. DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013,
Hence, the relevant disclosure or reparting requirements are not applicable to the Company,

7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Mo material change and commitment affecting the financial pasitian of the Company, has ccourred
between the end of the financal year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and
the date of this report.

B. INFORMATION ABOUT THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE / FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCIATES/ IV:

During the financial year under review, the Company has sold the entire stake it had in M/s Mimoza
Enterprises Finance Private Limited (“Mimoza®) (Associate Company), a private limited company
registered under the Companies Act, 1956 and registered with the RBI as a non-deposit taking NBFC
to M/s Pradakshana Trust.

As an March 31, 2017, the Company dogs not have any Subsidiaries, Associates and IV.

9, PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company makes Investments or extent loans for its business purpose. Details of loans and
investments covered under Sectlon 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the notes to the
fimancial statement provided in this Annual report.

10, BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

(i} Board of Directors

At on March 31, 2017, the Board of the Company comprises of 4 Independent Directors, 3 Investor
Mominee Directors and 1 Executive Director.

5. No MName of Director Designation DI
1 | Narayan Ramachandran Investor Nominee Director 01873080
2 Karel Gerardus Nlerop Investor Nom|nee Director 07743489
3 Ravi Tyagi Investor Nominee Director 07270355
4 Mathew Titus Independent Director 00159636
5 K P Ramesh Menon® Independent Director DEBOG6111
G Mahesh Kanumury independent Director 02028993
T | Suvalaxmi Chakraborty Independent Director 01060954
B 5. Viswanatha Prasad Managing Director N0574928

*Resigned w.e.f Moy 23, 2017



The Board of Directors met six times during the Financial Year on the following dates — May 25,
2016; July 22, 2016; August 2, 2016; August 75, 2016; November 11, 2016 and February 23, 2017.

{ii} Audit Committee

As on March 31, 2017, the Audit Committee of the Company comprises of 4 members.

| 5. No Name of Director Designation Committee
1 | KP Ramesh Menon® | Independent Directar Chalrman
|2 | Mahesh Kanumury | Independent Director Member
3 | MNarayan Ramachandran Investor Nominee Director Member
4 | Suvalaxmi Chakraborty Independent Director Member |

"Hesignfd' woe fhay 23, 2017

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are ag per the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies ACL

The Audit Committee met four times during the financial year an May 25, 2016; August 24, 2016;
November 11, 2016 and February 23, 2017,

All the recommendations of the Audit Committes were accepted by the Board of Directors during
the year under review. The Committee includes a majority of independent Directors,

[ili} Asset Liability & Risk Management Committee [ALRMC)

As on March 31, 2017, the Asset Liability & Risk Management Committes (ALRMC) comprises of 3
members.

5. No Name of Director Deslgnation Committea
1 Suvalaxmi Chakraborty Independent Director Chalrman

2 Narayan Ramachandran Investor Nomines Director Member

| 3 | 5 Viswanatha Prasad Managing Director Member

The ALRMC met 4 times during the financial year on May 25, 2016; August 24, 2016; Novemnber 11,
2016 and February 23, 2017,

() Corporate Social Responsibility Committee [C5R Committee)

As on March 31, 2017, the C5R Committee of the Company comprises of 3 members:

| 5. No Name of Director : Designation Committee |
1 Mahesh Ranumfw Fndegfndent Director Chairman
2 Mathew Titus Independent Director 4 hMemhber
3 | 5. Viswanatha Prasad Managing Director Member

The Committee met twice during the financial year on May 25, 2016 and August 24, 2016,



The Company is required to spend 2% (two per cent) of the average net profits for the preceding
three financial years as per Section 135 (5) of the Act,

The Company contributed INR 2,820,000 which constituted 2.00% of the average Profit after Tax of
the Company for the years 2013-14, 2014-15 and 2015-16 to {i} International Association for Human
Values (IAHV) which is part of the Art of Living group; (i) Janaagraha Centre for Citizenship &
Democracy ("lanaagraha®); (iii] Sage Seva Society [“Sage”): and {ii) Parinaam Foundation
{"Parinaam™). The details of the CSR policy and activities as per Rule 9 of Companles (Corporate
Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 are attached as Annexure |.

[v] Nomination and Compensation Committee

As on March 31, 2017, the Nomination and Compensation Committee of the Company comprises of
3 members:;

5. Na Mame of Directar ' _ Designation Committee
|1 | Mathew Titus Independent Director Chairman
2 | Mahesh Kanumury Independent Directar Member |
3 K P Ramesh Menon* Independent Director | Member

*Resigned w, e.fMay 23, 2017
The Committee met one time during the financial year on May 25, 2016
11. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Mr. Theodoor Jacob Hendrik Elsen (DIN: 06570791) resigned as
Investor Nominee Director w.e.f. February 23, 2017 and Mr. Ravi Tyagi (DIN: 07270355) and Mr,
Karel Nierop (DIN: 07743483) were appointed as Investor Nominee Directors w.e.f November 11,
2016 and February 23, 2017 respectively.

Further, Ms, Saranya Balaji resigned as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company
w.el January 13, 2017 and Ms. Vandana Bhatia was appointed as Company Secretary and
Complance Officer of the Company w.e.f March 1, 2017,

None of the directors of the Company are Inter-se related to sach other.

12, DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors of the Company under
section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence
a5 laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,

13. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND REMUNERATION POLICY
The Nomination and Compensation Committee of the Board assesses candidates for the Board on

comblnation of parameters. These includes experience, personal and professional stature, domain
expertise, specific qualification for the position and his/her independence as defined in Section



149{6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee then places the details of shortlisted candidates
to the Board for consideration. If the Board approves, the person gets appointed as Additional
Directar {only for Non-Executive Director and Independent Director), subject to the approval of
Shareholders in General Meeting.

In accordance with Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the palicy for remuneration to
Directors, ey Managerlal Personnel (KMPs), Senior Management and ather employees is attached
a5 Annexure I,

14. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual perfarmance
evaluation of its performance, the performance of individual Directors as well as the working of |ts
committees. A structured exercise was carried out based on the criteria for evatuation forming part
of the Directors Appointment, Remuneration & Evaluation Policy, including a framewark for the
performance evaluation of Directors, the Board & Committess and the Inputs received from the
[Mrectors, covering various aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the composition
of the Board and its committees, attendance at meetings, Board culture, duties of directors, and
Eovernance,

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of Individual Directors, who were
evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence of
Judgement, safeguarding the interest of the Company and Its stakeholders etc. The performance
evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, The performance
evaluation of the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The
Directors have expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

15. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors would like to inform you that the audited financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2017 are In full conformity with the requirements of Section 134(5} of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Board of Directors wish 1o state that:

{a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b} the directors have selected such accounting policies and applled them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to Efve a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the campany for that period;

{c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities:

(d} the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis: and



[e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectivaly.

() the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has Asset Llahility & Risk Management Committee |ALRM) comprises of one
independent Director, The Company has developed 3 risk management framework (commensurate
with its size and business objectives) and has a Risk Management Policy to identify, prioritize and
mitigate the risk that could adversely affect the Compa ny. As per the risk management policy of the
Company, key risks and progress on their mitigation in the form of a Risk Report are quarterly
presented and discussed at the ALRM Committee Meeting.

17. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and
were aparating effectively. These controls ensure the accuracy and completeness of the aceo unting
records and preparation of reliable financial statements. The Statutory Auditors review internal
control and risk management measures, accounting procedures, highlight areas requiring attention,
and report their main findings to the Audit Committee,

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings and action taken thereon, as well as the
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal financial systems and controls.

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with Section 134{3){h] of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8{2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars of contract or arrangement entered Into by the Company
with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) in Form ADC-2 is attached as Annexure |l

The details of related party disclosures form part of the notes to the financial statements provided in
this Annual Report,

19. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT
(i) Statutory Auditors

The shareholders at their 248" Annual General Meeting held on August 3, 2015, approved the
appointment of M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants {ICAl Reglstration No
001076N/NSODO13), as Statutory Auditors of your Company, to hold office from the conclusion of
the 24™ Annual General meeting upto the conclusion of 27" Annual General Meeting, subject to
ratification by the shareholders at every subsequent Annual General Meeting, In terms of Section
139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. The Statutory Auditors have
confirmed their eligibility under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the
Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.



The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors recommend the continuation of M/s Walker
Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registration No 001076N/NS00013), as Statutory
Auditors of your Company from the conclusian of the ensuing 26™ AGM till the conclusion of 27t
Annual General Meeting, for ratification by the sharehalders.

(i} Internal Auditor

To carry out an internal audit of all its operations, the Company engaged Trived| & Bang, Charterad
Accountants, Hyderabad (ICAI Registration No D0S3065) as the Internal Auditors. The Audit
Committee assures the Internal audit functions as well as tha adeguacy and effectiveness of the
Internal systems and controls,

(iii) Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment &
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s. B&A Associates, Company Secretaries,
Hyderabad, were appointed to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for FY2017. The
secretarial Audit Report for FY2017 is attached as Annexure IV,

20. BOARD RESPOMNSES ON AUDITOR'S QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR
DISCLAIMER MADE

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Statutory Auditors in
their repart,

However, the Secretarlal Auditor had made a minor observation in the Secretarial Audit Report
which Is forming a part of Secretarial Auditor Report.

During the year, there were no instances of frauds reparted by auditors under Section 143{12) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

21. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE COURT/REGULATORS
During the year under review, there were no significant/or material orders, passed by any Court or
Regulators or Tribunal which may impact the Ening concern status of the Company's operations in

future.

22, DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSDRPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGD

| [A) Conservation of energy This prowvision is not applicable as the
| Company does not belong to the category
af the Companies that are required to
disclose the particulars under Section
134(3){m) of the Act read with the
Companies {Accounts) Aules, 2014.




[} | The steps taken or impact on conservation of | NA
Bnergy;

(i} | The steps taken by the company for utilizing | N4
| alternate sources of energy;

{lii} | The capital investment on Energy conservation | NA

equipment’s; :
(8) | Technology absorption This provision Is not opplicable to the
Company as It did not use any obsorbed
technalogy.

iy | the efforts made towards technology absorption; NA

(i) | the benefits derived ke product improvement, | NA
cost reduction, product development or Import
substitution;

_"{-IiI] in case of imported technology (imported during | NA
the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year):-

- the details of tachnology imported; NA
- the year of import; - A
- whether the technology been fully absorbed MNA
(C) | FOREIGN EXCHANGE
(i} Foreign Exchange Earnings A
{ii} Forelgn Exchange Outgo INR 365,932

23, DISCLOSURES
(i) Extract of Annual Return

Pursuant to- Section 92{3) of the Act and Rule 12{1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the annual return In the Form MGT 9 is appended as
Annexure V.

{ii} Whistle Blower policy

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy for
directors and employees to report their genuine concerns to the Chalrman of the Audit Committee.
The Whistle Blower Palicy has been formulated with a view to provide a mechariism for employees
and directors to approach the Audit Committse of the Compa .

Buring the year under review, no complaints have been received pursuant to the Whistle Blower
Policy of the Company,

{lii) Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment

The Company has in place a Pollcy against Sexual Harassment In line with the requirements of The
sexual Harassment of Women at the Warkplace {Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal} Act, 2013, &n
Internal Complaints Committees (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints recelved regarding
sexual harassment,



There was no case of sexual harassment reported during the year under the review,
(i} Polley on Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the Act

Pursuant to Sectlon 135 of the Companies &ct, 2013 read with the Companies [Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has adopted a Policy on C5R and the Policy has been

placed on the website of the Company http//www.cil.caspian.in/policies
[w) Particulars of employees and related disclosures

The disclosure relating to particulars of employees as per Section 197 (12) of the Act read with Rule
5 of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
appended as an Annexure V| with this Repart.

Further, pursuant to Section 197{12), none of the employee have received remuneration exceeding
the prescribed limit a5 stated in Rule 5(2} of the Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

(vi} Disclosure pertaining to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013

With respect to the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as advised, the
Annual Repaort is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information i available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company during working hours. Any member interested in
obtaining such information may write to the Company Secretary at complisnce@caspian.in and the
same will be furmished on request,

[wil} Issuance of Secured Rated Listed Redeemable Transferable Mon- Convertible Debentures

During the year under review, the Company has allotted 3,361 Secured Rated Listed Redeemable
Transferable Non-convertible Debeptures of face value of INR 100,000 each to a non-resident
imvestor on April 5, 2016 and 3,380 Secured Rated Listed Redeemable Transferable Mon-convertible
Debentures of face value of INR 100,000 each to a non-resident investor on August 19, 2016,

{viii) Contact details of Debenture Trustees

DB Trusteeship Services Limited

Asian Building, Ground Floor 17, R. Kamani Marg Ballard Estate, Mumbai —400001,
Maharashtra, India

Phone; +31 22 40807000

Fax; +81 22 66311776

Email: itsl@idbitrustee.com

Website: htip.//idbitrustee com/
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ANNEXURE ON CSR ACTIVITIES
C5R policy of Casplan lm I Priv

The Compamy’s mission is to enable the growth of enterprises that work towards creating social and/or
enviranmental impact, in a responsible, transparent and sustainable manner. The Company uses a
varlety of debt instruments to achjeve this. The Company's focuses on enterprises engaged in
Microfinance, Small Business Financing, Affordable Housing, Flnancial Inclusion enablers, Food &
Agriculture, Clean energy and Energy Efficiency, Healthcare and General Impact Enterprises and is well
positioned to continue (o create positive impact on the lives through its C5R activities,

In accordance with Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company will focus on the following
areas in ts C5R engagement:

« promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills
especially among children, women, elderly, and the differenthy-abled and livelihood
enhancement projects;

« eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and
sanitation and making available safe drinking water;

# promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women
and arphans; setting up ol age homes, day care centers and such ather facilities for senior
citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward
EFOUpS;

» ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna,
animal welfare, agro-forestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of
sail, @ir and water;

The Company's CSR policy has been uploaded in the website of the Company and the web link to CSR
policy s http://docs. wixstatic, 3952d8 9be7bediselbd 789af7ciSd2ala

eyt o M.

During the financlal year, the Company’s CSR focus has been on “Promoting education, Including
special education and empioyment enhancing vocation skills especially among children, women,
elderly, and the differently-able and livelihood enhancement projects.”

In line with the atorementloned focus, the Company has made the following CSR Contributions during
the year, to projects focused on Education with an emphasis on the education of the girl child:

The Company has, through its CSR contribution of INR 600,000, facilitated the implementation
of the student mid-day meal program being undertaken in some of the schools in the tribal
regions of Dadika, Kalchiti and Chakdoha villages in Ghatsila, Jharkhand.

2. Parinaam Foundation ["Parinaam'}

The Company, through its C5R contribution of INR 240,000, continued its annual support to
the 30 children adopted In 2015,



3. lanaagraha Centre for Citizenship & Democracy [“Janaagraha”]

The Company, through its CSR contribution of INR 1,200,000, supported in inculcating civic

awaranass and civic engagement by way of Bala Janaagraha program belng conducted in 16
schools by Janaagraha.

4. Sage Seva Society [“Sage”)

The Company, through its CSR contribution of INR 780,000, supported in improving the
general infrastructure in two schools run by Sage (these schools provide quality Education to
under privileged children in remote rural areas at an affordable cost} including adding a
library, improving audio-visual aids and computer facilities.

[s] Comm 4
*  Mr. Mahesh Kanumury {Chair)
= Mr, Mathew Titus
*  Mr. 5Viswanatha Prasad

A MNet P Com thr al year
Met Profit after Tax
Financial Years Amount (INR)
_Eﬂlé.'l-ﬂ- 153,467,638
2014-15 162,958,561
2015-16 E?.SE!,IIE
Average Net Profit 140,596,458
[ 2% of Average Net Profit 4,819,929
Total Amount Spent 2,961,000
{1 {2) (3] (4) (5 | {8) {7) (8)
Projects or
programs Amount
Local area or spent on the
other prajects or
Specify the Amount Programs
state and outlay sub-heads;
district [budges) DHrect Cumulative
whare project expendlture | expenditure Amount
Sector in projects of or In projects up to the spent Direct
CSR project | which the ArOErams | programs | of programs | reporting or through
5 or activity project is wias wise in Ouerhoads perfod in | Implementing
Mo | identified covered undertakin INR In INR INR agency in INR |
1 | Mid-day meal | Education of | International B00.000 | Direct Exp: 600,000 GO0, D00
program in undar- Association &, 000
the orivileged for Human Impiementing
schioald in children Valies = dgency; The
remote rural Dhadike, Internaticnal
areas Ghatsla and Association
of tharkhand Kabkchivl In tha for Human
being run by triial reglons Walues
I HY of Iharkhand
2 | Sponsarship | Educationof | Parinaam 240,000 | Direct Exp: 200,000 240,000
of 30 children | under- Foundation 240,000




under the privilegad fmplementing
Academic childran Sponsoring Agency -
Adoption the Parinaam
Program and education of Faundation
complete 12 under
yERS priviiegad
fee dor 7 childras in
children Bangalore
Inculcating Education & | lanssgraba 1.200,000 | Direct Exp; 1,200,000 1,200,000
chlc Skib 1,200,000
AWETENBES Development | Inculcating Implementing
and civic cluig AREncy -
ENagement AWAMENESS lanazgraha
oy way of and civic
Bala ENgagement
tarmaagraha by way of
program Bala
feng lanaagraha
conducted in ORI
16 schools by belng
Jamaagraha eonducted |n

16 scheals by

Ianaagraha
improving Livelihood Sage TEO,000 | Direct Exp: 70,000 780,000
the general enhancement TEO,000
Infrastructure | projmets Improving Implementing
in two the general Apency -
schoeds run Infraseructure Sage
by Sage in bwo
inclading schools
adding a namealy
library, Chenpur and
improving Medlaripet
audio-visugl run by Sage
alds and ineluding
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facllities lisrary,

Improing

audig-visual

ids and

cormpuier

facillties
Admin Costs Overheads:

141,000
| Saghed
I il
Chairman C5R Committee




Annasursa Il
REMUMNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act™) read with
the Rule & of the Campanies (Meeting of the Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 and any other
applicable provisions under the Act and Rules thereunder, the Momination and Compensation
Committee of the Board of the Company has formulated a remuneratian policy to decide the criteria
for the appointment of and remuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel and other
employess,

Produced here below is the “Remuneration Policy” of the Company In compliance with Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto.

The Policy alse alms to attract, motivate and retain manpower in a competitive and global markets
sconario. For the purpose of this policy and terms and reference of Nomination and Compensation
Committee Senlor Management Personnel include Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Executives.

The objective of the policy is:

1. To ensure that Directors, Senior Management Persannel of high calibre are attracted and
retained and are sufficiently compensated for their performance. The Policy seeks to provide
criteria for determining qualifications and positive attributes of the employees.

2. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directars and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria lald down herein after,

3. Toevaluate the performance of the Directors and Senior Management Personnel

4. To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors and Senior
hManagement Personnel.

5 To formulate the criterla for determining gualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the Directors and Senior Management Personnel,

NOMINATION AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted the Nomination and Compensation Committee (hereinafter refaerred
as “the Committee”) as per the provision of Section 178 of the said Act. The Committee can be
reconstituted form time to time as may be deemed fit and appropriate by the Board of Directors.

The Committee shall, while formulating the policy ensure that:

1. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
maotivate Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the quality required to run the
Company efficiently;

2. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

3. Remuneration to Directors and Senior Management Personnel invalves a balance between

fived and variable pay, reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to
the company and its goals.

The Committes shall convene at such regular intervals as may be requined.

MWecessary disclosures of this policy shall be made in the Annual Report of the Company in
terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013,

o



CRITERIA FOR BOARD MEMBERSHIP AND BOARD DIVERSITY;

1. Directors must have relevant experience In Finance/ Credit/ Law/ Management, Sales/

Marketing/ Administration/ Research/ Corporate Governance/ Technical Operations/Human
Resources or ather disciplines relevant to Company’s business.

2. The Director should possess the highest personal and professional ethics, Integrity and
values,

3. The Director shall not have any material interest in the Company or any of its officers, ather
than as a director or shareholder of the Company, Wherever required the Director should
disclose the nature of his interest, if there are reasons to belleve there Is or a likelihoed of a
conflict of interest.

REMUNERATION CRITERIA:

This is determined is largely based on industry benchmarks, the Company's performance vis-a-vis
the Industry, peer group comparison, factors like inflation rate in the country and perfarmance of
the employees,

1. For Whole Time Directors/ Managing Director/ Executive Directors:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall recommend the remuneration to the
Board within the maximum limits as set under the Companies Act, 2013, Schedule V and
Rules made thereunder and subject to the approval of the shareholders as and where
applicable,

The Company shall pay the remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and allowances (both
fixed and variable component) to its Whole-time/Managing Director and Senior
Management Personnel,

Perquisites and retirement benefits are paid according to the Company policy, and
applicable laws and regulations as applicable to Senior Management Personnel.

2. For Independent Non-Executive Directors:

An Independent Non-Executive Director shall receive sitting fees for attending meetings of
the Board and Board Committees. Sitting fees paid to the Independent Mon-Executive
directors s determined periodically & reviewed based on industry benchmarks.
Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for their professional expertise and
skills in their individual capacity as Independent professionals.

An Independent Director Non-Executive Director may also receive profit related commission
as approved by the Sharehalders.

An Independent Non-Executive Director may also be remunerated by the way of
reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board and other meetings,

3. Faor the Senior Management Personnel and Other Employees:

a.

The remuneration of Senlor Management Personnel and other employees largely consists of
basic salary, perguisites, and allowances (both fixed and varlable). Perquisites and
retiremant benefits are paid according to the Company policy.

They are also entitied to customary nen-monetary benefits on a case 1o case to basis.

The components of remuneration vary for different grades and are governed by industry
benchmarks, gualification, experience and performance of each employee,



POLICY REVIEW & FUTURE AMENDMENT

This policy shall remain in force unless modified by the Nomination and Compensation committes
and approved by the Board.



Annexure - Il

Form Na. A0C-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014}

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered inte by the company with

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

a) | Name{s) of the related party and nature of relationship
b} Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
c) | Duration of the cantracts / arrangements/transactions
d} salient terms af the contracts or armmangements or
transactions including the value, if any
&) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions

f) | Date(s) of approval by the Board
;) Amount paid as advances, if any

i} Date on which the special resolution was passed In
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

Mot Applicable

2. Detalls of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

2) Mamel(s) of the related pa.!:w and nature of relationship | Refer Note 20 (a) of the notes
to the financial statements

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Refar Note 20 (b} of the notes
| tothe financial statements
£ Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions | Ongoing
d) | Salient terms of the contracls or arrangements or Refer Note 20 of the notes to
transactions including the value, If any the financiai statements

e) | Date{s) of approval of the Board, if any
fl Amount paid as advances, If any
Fy

y
For and on hahfll of the Board of Directors

A N

5. U‘ifwanatha Prasad Mahesh Kanumury
Managing Director Director

Jl’ll 1"3 - qi_ﬁ_ e b m.-.ém:]l
Lakshmikant PE~ Vandana Bhatia
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REFORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31% MARCH, 2017

[Pursuiant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no .9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Manogerial Personnel) Rufes, 2014]

Tes

The Members

M /s, Casplan impact [nvastments Private Limited
[Formerly Bellwether Microfinance Fund Private Limited]
8-2-596,5/8/1, Road No.10, Banjara Hills

Hyderabad, Telangana State

. We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory

prnulsbns aru:l the adherence to guud mrpumte practices by M/s Caspion Impoct

' - P 31) (hereinafter called the

I:umpany":l Secretarial Aud]t wias mndm:ted In a manner that provided us a reasonable

basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

l. Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the audit perlod covering the financial year ended on 31" March, 2017 {“Audh
Perfod”) complied with the statutory provisions listad heresunder and also that the
Company has proper board processes apd compliance-mechanism in place to the extant,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hareinafter:

. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial vear ended on 31" March, 2017
according to the provisions of:

a) The Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”) and the rules made thereunder,

b) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA’) and the rules made there
under; (Not Applicable)

¢} The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
{Not Applicable)

d) Forelgn Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulstions made
thereunder to the extent of Forelgn Direct Investment;
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Continuatlon sheet

&) The following Regulations and Guidefines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of Indla Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’):

a) The Sacurities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; {Not Applicable)

b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibiton of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992; (Not Applicable)

€] The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue of Capital and Disclosura
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option
scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 notified on 28 October 2014; [Not Applicable |

g} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

fi The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Reglstrars to an Lssue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and
dealing with client; (Not Applicable}

gl The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Mot Applicahle) and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998; {Not Applicable)

IV. We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing In the
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof the Company has complied with laws applicable with respect to the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 and Non-Banking Financial (Mon-Deposit Accepting or Holding)
Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998 as amended from time to
time which are specifically applicable to the Company:

V., We have also examinad compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a) Secretarial Standards issued by “The Institute of Company Secretaries of India” an
Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meeting.
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Continuation sheet

b)Listing Agreement entered by the Company with BSE Limited as per Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

VL During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidellnes, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the
following observation:

- The Board had appraved the transfer of 1, 66, 830 Equity shares of Rs.10/- sach at a
negotiated price of Rs. 299.43/- each from Gray Ghost Microfinance Fund LLC (Non-
resident) to Casplan Impact Investment Adviser Private Limited (resident) by way of
crculation on 13" Octaber, 2016 except the transfer of the sald Equity shares was
effected prior to obtaining the certificate of approval of form FC-TRS (Foreign
Currency Transfer of shares) from Citibank N.A, i.e. Authorized Dealer, as required
under the provislons of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 readwith relevant
regulations ,

VIl. We further report that the Board of Directars of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Mon-Executive Directors and independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

VIl Adequate notice is glven to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detalled notes on agenda were generally sent at least seven days In advance, and a
system exists for seeking and obtalning further information and clarifications on the
agenda ltems before the mesting and for meaningful participation at the moeting,
Consent of directors was obtained Tor the board meetings called with shorter notices.

IX. Al decislons at Board Meetings and Committes Meetings are carriad out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committes of the
Board, as the case may be.

K. We further report that there are adequate systems and processes In the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
campliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Xl We further report that during the audit period the Company has;

a) allotted 3,361 Rated Listed Secured Redeemable Transferable Non-Convertible
Debentures of face value of Rs, 1,00,000/-(Rupees One Lakh only) each at a discount of
Rs. 2,000/ (Rupees two thousand only) per Debenture on 5™ April, 2015 to Australla
and New Zealand Banking Group Limited (Singapore Branch) through private
placement
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Continuation shoet

b) allotted 3,320 Rated Listed Secured Redeemable Transferable Mon-Convertible
Debentures of face value of Rs. 1,00,000/-[Rupees one lakh only) each at a discount af
Rs. 3,050/- (Rupees three thousand and fifty only) per Debenture on 19" August, 2016
to Australia and Mew Zealand Banking Group Limited (Singapore Branch) through
private placement

c) allotted 1335871 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs.289.43/- per share
on 9™ September, 2016 to SIDBI Trustee Company Limited Afc- Samridhl Fund through
private placement

d) allotted 17,366 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs.289.43/- per share
on 23" February, 2017 to Caspian Impact Investment Adviser Private Limited by way of
conversion of 5,20,000/- Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

{CCCPS)
For R & A Assoclates
{G. Raghiu Babu)
Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 7 June, 2017 FCS No.4448

CP No. 2820

This report /s to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed os “Annexure —A”
ottached herewith and forms an integrol part of this report
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Annexure =4

To

The Mambers

M/s. Casplan Impact Investments Private Limited
[Formerly Beflwether Microfinance Fund Private Limited]
8-2-596/5/8/1, Road No.10, Banjara Hills

Hyderabad, Telangana State

Dur report of even date |5 to be read along with this latter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records s the responsibility of the management of M/s.
Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited, (CIN:U65993TG1991PTC013491) ("the
Company”), Cur responsibility Is to axpress an opinion on thesa secretarial records
based on our audit.

2, We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records,
The verification was done on the random test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We belleve that the processes and practices, we
fallowed provide a reasonable basis for our apinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accaunts of the Company.

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards Is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedwres on random test basis.

5. The Secretarizl Audit report Is nefther an assurance as to the future wabllity of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
canducted the affairs of the Company.

()
R& A Associates/T S

%

(G. Ragi
Partner
Place: Hyderabad FCS No,: 4448
Date: 7" June, 2007 CPMNo.: 2820
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Annexura Y
Form Ne. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 21.03.2017
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

1 [an UB5993AP1991PTC013491 .
Registration Date 25-Noy-1991
Name of the Company ".;.'.asplan Impact Investments Private Limited
|
g caiegnrwSu b-category Company Limited by Shares
of the Company
5 | Address of the | 3nd Floor, 8-2-596/5/8/1, Road No: 10, Banjara Hills,
Registered office & Hyderabad - 500034, Telangana, India
contact details Tel: 491 40 66297100
& | Whether listed company | While the Equity shares are not listed in the Securities

markets, debt securities are listed on the wholesale debt
segment of Bambay Stock Exchange.

Mame, Address &
contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer
Agent, If any,

Equity Shares

Karvy Computershare Private Umited

Plot No.17 - 24, Vithal Rao Nagar, Madhapur,
Hyderabad - 500081, Telangana, India

Tel: +91 40 44655208

Listed Debentures

Link Intime India Pwt. Ltd.

£-13, Pannalal 5ilk Mills, Compound LBS Marg,
Bhandup {West),

Mumbai — 400078, Maharashtra, India
Tel:+91 22 250963438

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing
10 % or mare of the total turnover of the company shall be stated):-

L

Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the Product/ | % to total turnover
5. No products [ services service of the Company
1 | Providing risk capital in the form 64920

of equity and debt to companies
In the impact Investment space

100.00% J




([ PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Holding/ % Of Applicabl
5. | MName And Address Subsidiary/ Shares e
No | Of The Company CIN/GLN Associate Held Section
MIL

V. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

[} Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Sharohalders

ho. of Sharos held at the beginning of the year

Mo of Shares held at the end of the year

Cemat

Physical

Total

% of
Taotal
Shares

Oamat

Physical

Taotal

Meoof
Total
Shares

% Changs
eduring
the year

A. Promoters

|11 indian

a)  Individualy
HUF

bl Centrad Govt

o} State Govt |3)

0. 254

d} Bodies Corp
€] Banks/Fi

583,938

12.30%

768,134

768,134

i} Any olher

Total
Shareholding
from Proemoters

(A

583933

12.30%

768,134

68,134

12508 0,285

A. Public
Shareholding

(1) bstitution

8| Mutual Funds

b Barnks/Fl

¢] Cantral Govi

d] State Gavi (8}

o) Wenture
Capital Funds

fl Imsurance
Companies -

gl Fiia/Fareign
Companins

3,842,050

3,843,050

3,876,220

3676220

~10.69%

h] Foreign
Wenture
Caplial Funds

it Others
Altermative
Imastmant
Fund —
Category |
isocial

Yenture
Fund]

1,335,871

1,335,871

2190

Sub total [B)1):-

3,843,060

3,E43,050

H0.94%

5,012,081

5,012,091

BL14% LI

2, Nan-
Institutions

a| Bodies Corp.

i) Indiian




il Oversaas

&) Individuals

i] Enciwicdial
shareholdsrs
halding nominal
share caplts] up
_to IMA 1 lakh

!

0.00%

e

3

0 0,

0.00% |

i) Individual
sharsholders
holding nominal
share capital In
excass of INR L
lakh

-1 321,206

321,206

GI0M

311,206

321,306

5.26%

=1.5%

| Othars
{specify|

Mon Resddent
Indiany

Overseas
_Corporate Sodies

Foreign Mationaks

Clearing
Membars

Trusts

Fodeign Bodies -
DR

Sub-total [B)2]:-

3.2

321279

B.7TH

331279

321,773

5,26%

-L5%

Total Public
Sharsholding
{Bl=(B)1]= (BH2)

Custodian for
GORs & ADRs

€ Shares held by

Grand Total
[AB+C)

4,748,267

6,101,504

6,101,504

(i} Shareholding of Promoters

the yaar

Shareholding at the boginning of

Shareholding at the end of the year

5 No

Shareholdaer's
MName

Mo of
Shares

% of total
Shares af

Company hntntul shares

ol Shares

Pledged /
encumbered | Mo, of

Shares

the

% af total
Sharos of
the

company

%of Shares
Pledged /

ta total
shares

% change in
encumbered [shareholding

during the

EEspian impact
ant
wiLes Private
Limizes

583,93

12 30% MA 768,134

12.50%
|

M

|

[+

Total

583,938

12.30%| A 768,134

12.59%

A

0.29%)




{iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding {please specify, if there is no change)

Sharaholding at ﬁuhlmhl Cumulative Shareholding diering the
of the yaar yEar
He af total IJ
shares of the % of total shares o
5 Mo Particulars Mo, of shares | company o, of shares the company
ru the beginning of the year 58393 12,3113
fe wise Increase | Decrease in 184, 156"
romoters Fhareholding during the year
pecilying the reasons for increass
decrease (g.g allotment [ transfar f
onusd swesl Bguity atc):
lat the End of the yaar  7eE134 12.59% 768,134 12.59%
* Charnges in alaveholding
Date R asong No ol Shares
F5-How-16 Acquinition of shares rom Giay Ghost Microfinance Fund, LLE 166 8390
13-Fah-17 Cormversion of CCCPS inte equity shares 17,366
| _I'Fn'l;ll 184,196

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs)

5 No

Shareholding at tha baginning of the

yEar

Cuomulathve Shareholding during the year

For Each of the Top 10
Shareholders

Mo, of shares

% of total sharss o

the company 'I No, of shares

% of total shares of the
company

AL (e beginning of the
I-.-E;ar

ate wise Incraaso [
eCrease In Share

ing during the year
pecifving the freasons

intrease f

ocroase (e, allatment
transfer  bonus /f
wear aquity etc)

{ the End of the year
ar on the date of
eparation, If sepasatad
uring the year)

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnal

shareholding at the beginning of the

L the beglnning of
ho year

year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
For Each of the H ol totsl shares of % of total shares of the
S Mo. | Directors and KMP | No. of shares the company Mo, of shares company
MiL




te wite [nerease f
crease (n
areholding during
hit year spacifying
ha reasons for
BALE
docrease
a.p. allotment
ansfor [ bonus/

the End al the

ar

¥. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loam
excluding Unsecured Total
Particulars deposits Loans Deposits Indebtodness
Indobtedness at the beginning of the
finmmeial year
I§ Principal Amount 1.167,744,131 52,430,130 i 1,215,174 261
Iy Interest dus but not paid §] i i I 1]
il Interest accrued but not dua T5E34 B18 o ] 25 834,210
Totad i + i + iii} 1,1B8,578,949 52,430,130 0 1,241,008,079
Change in Indebtedness during the i :
financial year
* Addition in Principal B84,102,973 @ a GE4,102,373
faduction In Principal 226,244,131 52,430,130 IT8,6748,261
Net Change 457,E58,842 52,430,130 o 405,428,712
Indebtodnass at the end of the
financlal year
i} Princpal Amount 1,620,602 973 o o 1,620,602,973
i) Ivbermst due bast pot paid 0 L] (4] F
lii] inferest sccrwed but not due 51,516,925 1] a 51616925
Total {1+ i = filj 1,672,210 898 1] il 1,672,.219,854
Vi, REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MAN&EEHM_I. PERSONNEL
A, Remuneration to other directors:
Momue of Direciors
Mahaosh Matthew | KP Rameth Suvalawmi Tatal
5, Ko Particulars of Remunaration Kanumury Titus Menon® Chahraborty Amount
1. Independent Diroctors -
« Fae for sttending bosrd 315,000 165,000 255,00 240,000 375,00
COMMiTien mestings
| - Commission®* 350,000 350,000 340,000 350,000 1,200,004




= Others, pleate specify ] ] 1] [+] ]
Remuneration
Tatal (1)
L Other Non-Executive
Directars
= Fee for atiending board o n a 4] ]
committee meetings
= Commission 0 0 L a 0
- Dthers, pleasse wpecify L1 o a a 0
Aermuraration
Total |2) a (1] L] a L)
Total [Bl=[1+2) 6,565,000 5,15,000 6,005,000 3,490,000 23,735,000
Total Manageral 1] a 1] ] 1]
Remuneration
Cwarall Ceiling a5 par the
Act®*®
*Resigned w.e f, May 23, 2017
*#5ubfect to the approval of Sharchalders in forthcoming Anowal General AMdeeting.
5% Being Private Limited Company, the ceiling limit iz exemmpted.
B. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD
Koy Managerisl Persannal
Chied
Financial Company | Company
Officer Secretary | Socretary
{Lakshmikant | [Saranya {Vandana
5. Nou Particulars of Remuneratian PH) Balafi) Bhatia) # Tatl
1 Grodd Salnsy
{a} Salary a5 per provisions contabned o section
17[1} of the incoma-tax Act, 1961 278,760 B1L,27% 9.8x | 1,182,954
(b} Vakue of perquisites u/s 17)2] Incoms-tas A,
1964 o i) ] i
it} Prafies in lieu of sakary under section 17{3)
Incorme-tay Act, 1961 0 a 0 i
Sub-Total
1 Stock Dption i} o o
4 Swiat Bty o ] [+]
Commission :
{2} &z % of profi 0 i [+ a
(bl others, speciy... o i} L1 0
5 Gthers, plegse specify
Total Z7R760 | 811,279 92920 | 1,182,958

# M. Soronya Bolofl resigned os Company Secretary ond Complance Officer of the Company w.e_fienuary 13, 2017 and
M. Vondana Bhatle was oppolnted af Compeny Secrebory and Complance Officer of the Company wee f March 1, 201 7,




Wi PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Datails of Penalty /
Punishment/ HAutharity Appeal made, if
Soction of the Brigf Compounding foas [RD ¥ WECLT/ any [give
Type Campanies At Descripthon impased COURT] Details)
A, COMPANY = NIL
Panally o L L1 o 1]
Punishment o o @ o &
Compounding 0 o o ] a
B, DERECTOHRS — NIL
Panalty ] 1] 1] 0 0
 Punishment 0 1 0 i i
[mmmm! i) l]' 4] i) I:I
C. OTHER DFFICERS IM DEFALILT = MNIL
Ponalty o 1] [+] 0 a
Punlshment o o i) o a
Compaunding o 0 i} v} a
L] a 1] o a




Shareholding Pattern as on 31-Mar-2017 (Top 10 shareholders other than directors, promoters

Appendix A

GDRs and ADRs)
I MNo. of % of total No.of | %oftotal
shares shares of shares shares of
(31-03- the {01-04- the
5 No Shareholders 2017) campany 2016) company Remarks

1 Gray Ghaost 1,504,663 24.66% | 1,671,493 35.20% | Transfer of
Microfinance Fund, 166,830 equity
LLC Lhares o

CaspHan
Impact
Investment
fdyiser Private
Limited
["CHARLY] on
Navembrer 29,
2016
2 Stichiting Hivos- 1,144,379 18.77% | 1,143,979 24.11%
Triodus Fonds
3 Nederlandss B51,074 13.85% 251,074 17.92%
Financierings-
Maatschappi] voor
Ontwikkelingslanden
i N.V.
4 Stichting Triodas 175,504 2.38% 175,504 3.70%
Sustainable Fimance
Faundation
5 | Arun Duggal 160,603 2.63% 160,603 3.38%
] Arfan Mangharam 160,603 2.63% 160,603 3.38%
Iethwani

7 Shilpa Sudhakar 73 0,00% 73 0.00%

-] SIEB! Trustes 1,335 4871 21.89% & - | éllatrment  of
Company Limitad Afc shares on
Samridhil Fund September 9,

2016




Annexure Vi

Disclosure relating to particulars of employees as per Section 197 (12) of the act read with rules 5 of
the Companies |Appolntment and remuneratlon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

{1} the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median P
remuneration of the employvees of the company for the financial
WEar,

fii} tho percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chisf 1]

Financial Officer, Chief Ewecutive Officer, Company Secretary or
Manages, i any, in the financial year;

{iiiy the percentage increass in the median remuneration of employees il

Im the financial year,
{iv} the number of permanent emplavees on the rolls of company; 3 {Thres)
{v] mverage percentile increase already made in the salaries of A

emplovaes other than the managesial personnel in the st linancial
vear and its comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof and palnt out if
there are amy exceptional circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration;

iwl] Affirmation that the remuneration s as per the remuneration policy Yieh
of the company.
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Waller Chandiok & Co LLP
{Formerly Walker, Chandick & Co}
7th Floor, Biock iii, White House
Kundan Bagh, Begumpet
Hyderabad 500016

India

T +51 40 6630 8200
F +91 40 6630 8230

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Membets of Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Caspian Impact Investments
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017,
the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directos is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act)) with tespect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and the
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as applicable to a Non-Banking Financial
Company (NBFC). This tesponsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
recotds In accordance with the provisions of the Act for safcguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other itregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intetnal
financtal controls, that were operating cffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and ptesentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Walker Chandick & Cq LLP is registernd with limited liability
with identfication number AAC-2085 and s Tegistered
Offices i Bengalury, Chandi Chennzi, Gurgaon, Hyderabad, Koclr, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhi, Noida and Pune office at L-41 Connaught Circus, New Delhi, 110001, Indiz
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10.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are requited to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards tequite that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether these financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedutes to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedutres selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or errot. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are approptiate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
ptovide a basis for our audit opinion on these financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
mannct so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affaits of the Company as at
31 March 2017, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give 1n the
Annexure A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Ordet.

Futther to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report

that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were neccssary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

. the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of

account;

Chartersd Acrountants
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d.

iv.

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounti.ng
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended);

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors ar_ld taken on
tecord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR} of
the Company as on 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated
23 May 2017 as per Annexure B expresses unmodified opinion; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditot’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

as detailed in Note 26 to the financial statements, the Company has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including detivative contracts for
which there werc any material foreseeable Josses;

there wete no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

the Company, as detailed in Note 24 to the financial statements, has made requisite
disclosures in these financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified
Bank Notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016. Based
on the audit procedures performed and taking into consideration the information and

explanations given to us, in our opinion, these are in accordance with the books of
account maintained by the Company.

Noleu it d Lo el
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registtation No.: 001076N /N500013

N

per Nikhil Vaid

Patitner

K
.-

Membetship No.: 213356 \

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2017

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Caspian
Impact Investments Private Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended

31 March 2017

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and othet records examined by us in the
normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

©®

(i)

()

(i)

)
(v1)

‘The Company does not have any fixed assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(i) of the Otder are not applicable.

The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(ii) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other partics covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses
3(ui)(a), 3(u1)(b) and 3(iif){c) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has not catered into any transaction covered under Sections
185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Otder are not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-

“section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Corpany’s services. Accordingly,

the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(vii)(z) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,

Income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited to the appropriate authorities, though there has been a slight delay in few
cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding
at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of

customs, duty of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as
follows:

Chartered Actountants
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Statement of Disputed Dues

Name of | Nature | Amount | Amountpaid | Petiod to Forum where
the of dues | (}) under Protest | which the dispute is pending
statute (?) amount
relates
Income- | Income 181,650 - | Assessment Deputy
tax Act, Tax Year 2008-09 | Commissioner of
1961 Income Tax,
Hyderabad
Income- | Income | 4,406,660 - | Assessment Commissioner of
tax Act, | Tax Year 2010-11 | Income Tax
1961 (Appeals),
Hyderabad
Income- | Income | 7,815,750 - | Assessment Commissioner of
tax Act, Tax Year 2013-14 | Income Tax
1961 {Appeals),
Hyderabad
Income- | Income | 4,929,000 739,370 | Assessment Commmissioner of
tax Act, | Tax Year 2014-15 | Income Tax
1961 (Appeals),
Hyderabad

(viti)

)

(xi)

(o)

The Company has not defaulted in tepayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or a bank or any dues to debenture-holdets during the year. The Company

has no loans or borrowings payable to government.

In our opinion, the Company has applied moneys raised by way of the term loans for the
purposes for which these were raised. The Company did not taise moneys by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officets or employees has been
noticed ot teported during the petiod covered by our audit.

The provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act are not

applicable to the company since the company is not a public company as defined under
Section 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xi) of the Order are not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause
3(x1) of the Order are not applicable.

In out opinjon all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has made ptivate placement of shares. In respect of the
same, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the requirement of Section 42 of
the Act and the Rules framed thereunder. 1™urther, in our opinion, the amounts so raised
have been used for the purposes for which the funds were taised. Duting the year, the
Company did not make preferential allotment or private placement of full/partly
convertible debentures.
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(xv) In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the
directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

(xvi) The Company is required to be tegistered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and such registration has been obtained by the Company.

Redtu. Chd sk { b R
For Walker Chandick & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

N Ve
pet Nikhil Vaid ~
Partner

Membership No.: 213356 L &

Place: Hydcrabad
Date: 23 May 2017

Chartered Accountants
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Annexute B to the Independent Auditor’s Repott of even date to the members of Caspian
Impact Investments Private Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2017

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Caspian Impact Investments Ir?dia
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2017, we have audited
the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company of as of that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. 'The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the mternal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
requite that we comply with ethical requitements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an
understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating cffectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the tisks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

Chartered Accountants
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Meaning of Intetnal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external putposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting ptinciples. A company's IFCoFR includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accutately and faitly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company ate being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthotised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a matetial effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Conttols over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to futurc periods are subject
to the tisk that [FCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinfon, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company consideting the essential components of mternal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Maklew QA9 60l

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chattered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

~ \{ '
N Vad
per Nikhil Vaid -
Partner

Membership No.: 213356

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 23 May 2017

Chartered Accountants



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
{Formerly Walker, Chandick & Co)
7th Floor, Block Ili, White House
Kundan Bagh, Bagumpet
Hyderabad 500016

India

T +91 40 6630 8200
F +91 40 6630 8230

Auditor’s Report

[Putsuant to the Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016]

To

The Board of Directors

Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
8-2-596/5/B/1, 11T Floor

Road No. 10, Banjara Hills

Hyderabad — 500 034.

1. We have audited the financial statements of Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited,
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and have issued a ungualified
opinion vide our report dated 23 May 2017.

2. As required by the paragraphs 3 and 4 of Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report
(Resetve Bank) Directions, 2016, issued by the Reserve Bank of India {(“the RBI”) vide Master
Direction DNBS. PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 29 September 2016, and based on our
audit, we report on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said directions:

a. The Company is engaged in the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution (without
accepting or holding public deposits) and pursuant to the provisions of Section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (as amended) it has obtained a certificate of
registration vide certificate no. B-09.00365 dated 24 February 2015.

In out opinion, and in terms of the Company’s assets and income pattern for the year
ended and as at 31 March 2017, the Company is entitled to continue to hold the certificate
of registration issued by the RBI.

Chartared Accountams Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered with mited Rability

with idenfification number AAC-2085 and its registered
lru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Gurg Hyderabad, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, Mew Delhi, Noida and Pune office at L-41 Connaught Circus, New Delbi, 110001, India
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In our opinion, the Company has complied with the net owned fund requitement as laid
down in Non-Banking Financial Company — Non-Systemically Important Non-1eposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, issued by RBI vide Master Dircction
DNBR.PI.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 01 September 2016.

‘The Company is not a Non-Banking Financial Company - Micto Finance Institutions
(“NBFC-MFIs”) as defined in the Non-Banking Financial Company — Non-Systemically
Important Non-deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016

The Boatd of Ditectors of the Company in their meeting held on 25 May 2016 has passed
a resolution for non-acceptance of any public deposits for the financial year 1 April 2016 to
31 March 2017.

The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the ycar ended 31 March 2017.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Company has complied, in all material respects, with the prudential norms issued
by the RBI in relation to income recognition, accounting standards, asset classification and
provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms of the Non-Banking
Financial Company — Non-Systemically Impottant Non-deposit taking Company (Resetve
Bank) Directions, 2016.

This report is issued in respect of Master Direction DNBS. PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 29
September 2016 issued by the RBI for submission to RB! and it is not to be used, circulated, quoted,
or otherwise referred to for any other purpose.

Wal bu Uigfe LU
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 001076N / N500013

Ny
per Nikhil Vaid
Partner ‘

Membership No.: 213356 .

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2017

Chartored Actowtants



Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017
{All zmounss in T unless otherwise stated)

Notes 31 Macch 2017 31 March 2016
Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders’ Funds
Share capital 3 61,015,040 52,682,670
Reserves and surplus 4 1,182,773,652 750,775 907
1,243,788,692 803,458,577
Non Current Liabilitics
Long-term borrowings 5 1,460,600,000 770,500,000
Long-term provisions G 8,035,399 11,550,069
1,468,635,399 782,050,069
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings 7 10,002,973 228,674,261
‘Trade payables
Total vutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 25 - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other thas micro and small enterprises 3,818,903 3,093,482
Other current liabitities 8 205,812,244 247 299,017
Short-tern provisions 6 14,092,224 9,336,559
233,726,344 488,403,319
Total 2,946,150,435 2,073,911,965
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Non-Current investments 9 156,474,621 111,618,211
Dreferred tax assets (net) 10 9,102,004 14,790,728
Long-tetm loans and advances ' 11 763,852,657 886,682,690
Other non current assets 12 26,476,436 18,725,271
955,905,718 1,031,816,900
Current Assets
Current investments 9 289,759,855 -
Cash and cash equivalents 13 432,113,029 76,076,261
Shott term loans and advances 11 1,255,639,008 958,655,868
Other current assets i2 12,732,825 7,362,936
1,990,244, 717 1,042,095,065
Toual 2,986,150435____ 2,073,911,965

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financia} sraternents.
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This is the Balance heet rcirted to in our report of even date.
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Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017
{All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Notes 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Revenue
Revenue from operations 14 385,024,297 232,464,530
Other mcome 15 645,902 1,683,492
Total revenue 385,670,199 234,148 022
Expenses
Investment advisory fee 44,145,604 36,098,170
Finance cost 16 199,584,339 105,941,434
Provision for standard assets and sub-standaed assets {net of reversal of ¥3,125,000) 1,240,995 7,537,567
FEmployee benefit expenses 1,142,049 1,066,793
(ther expenscs 17 80,403,882 15,940,883
Total expenses 326,516,869 166,584,847
Profit before tax 59,153,330 67,563,175
‘Tax Expense
Current tax 146,710,000 26,260,000
MAT credit entitlement - {14,872,011)
16,710,000 11,387,989
"Taxes of earlier years (4,138,073 {8,240,658)
Deferred tax cxpense/ (credit) 5,688,724 (2,730,668}
Profit for the year 40,892,679 67,146,512
Earning per equity share (CPLS)
Nominal value per share 23 10.00 10.00
_ Badic EPES 134 1273
- Diluted EPES 1.34 12.73

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our
report of even datc
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Chartered Accountants
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Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

{All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 59,153,330 67,563,175
Adjustments :

Reversal of allowances for sub-standard assets . {3,125,900) .
Provision for standard and sub-standard assets 4,365,995 7,537 567
Provision for doubtful advances 2,008,120 1,158,358
Investments written-off 46,242 850 -
Loans written-off ] 12,500,000 -
Amortisation expenses - 1,637,014
Operating profit before working capitat changes 121,145,295 77,896,114
Increase in loans to customers {172,292,904) (733,237 ,928)
Increase in investments (380,859,115} -
Increase in non current assets (5,369,889) (2.821,378)
Increase in current assets (7,751,165) (674,302)
Increase in long term loans and advanees {2,000,0600 -
Inctease in short-term loans and advances {231,430) {1,158,358)
Increase in trade payables 725,421 3,003,483
Increase in other current liabilities 24,513,227 18,553,898
Cash used in operating activities {422,120,560) (638,348,471)
Income taxes paid (26,708,820} (17,080,232}
Net cash used in operating activities A (448,829,380) (655,428,703)
Cash flows from investing activitics B - -

Cash flows from financing activities

Reduction of equity share capital - {6,416,800)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 399,599,854 -
Proceeds from issue of non convertible debentures 674,100,000 -
Dividend paid, including dividend distribution tax {562,418} (1,934,056}
Proceeds/ (repayments) of long-term borrowings (50,000,000 200,000,000
Net proceeds/ (repayments) of short-term borrowings (218,671,288) 153,674,261
Net cash generated from financing activities C 804,866,148 345,323,405
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 356,036,768 (310,105,298)
Cash and cash cquivalents as at the beginning of the year 76,076,261 386,181,555
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 432,113,029 76,076,261

Sdte s




Caspian Impact Iavestments Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

{All amounss in T unless othenwise stated)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Note 1: Proceeds from sale of investrments 66,732,098 -
Note 2 Conversion of CCCPS into equity shares 5,200,000 -

The accompanying notes form an intepral part of the financial staternents.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referced to in our
report of even date.
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Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
{All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

1.

Company overview

Cas..pian Impact Investmen}:s_ Private Limited (“the Company™) is a company domiciled in India and
registered under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company operates as a Loan
Compimy anfl consequently is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Institution (Non-Deposit taking)
(“NBFC”) with the Reserve Bank of India (“the RBI™).

The C.ompm.ay is engaged in making investments in the form of equity and debt in social impact sectors
including micro finance, small business financing, affordable housing, food and agriculture, business
correspondents, heaithcare and clean energy.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India (“Indian GAAP”), including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), pronouncements of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAT’Y and guidelines issued by the RBI as applicable to non-banking financial
company. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis except for intetest on non-
performing loan assets which have been accounted on cash basis based on the RBI Guidelines.

All assets and labilities have been classified as curtent or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule I to the Act. Based on the natute of
business, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to
tnake estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and Labilities and
disclosutes relating to contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Examples of such estimates include
provisions for doubtful loans and advances, investments and classification of assets and liabilities nto
current and non-cutrent.

Although these cstitates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
actuzl results could differ from thesc estimates. Any tevision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in the current and future periods.

Investments

Tnvestments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not morc than a year from the date
of the investment and current maturities of long-term investments is classified as current investments.
All other investinents are classified as long-term investments, Current investiments are carried at lower
of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-tenm investments are cartied
at cost. However, ptovision for diminution in value is made to recognise a decline other than
temporary in the value of the long-term investments.

Investment in Trust

The Company has sct up Bellwether Microfinance Trust (“the Trust™) with the objective of making
investments in companics, ventures or enterprises engaged in the activitics thart are in line with the
Company’s objectives, The Company is the sole contributor and beneficiary of the Trust. The
contributions/redemption  transactions with the Trust are accounted as “Investment in Trust” in
accotdance with AS 13 and the profit/losses realized by the Trust is accounted accordingly.




Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mazch 2617
(A6l amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

e. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it i1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the collectability 1s reasonably assured.

Interest on loans is recognised on accrual basis, except in the case of Non-Performing Assets
{(“NPA™), where interest is recognised upon realisation, in accordance with the directives of the
Non-Banking Financial Company — Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
{Resetve Bank) Directions, 2016,

¢ Loan processing fee is accounted as revenue on the basis of agreement with customer.
¢ Profit/loss on sale of investments is determined using the average cost of investments.

e Interest income from investments and fixed deposits is recognized on time proportion basis taking
into account the amount outstanding and the ratc applicable.

s Dividend is recognized when right to receive payment is established.
f. Asset classification and provision for loan portfolio

Asset classification and provisioning

Asset classification Criteria Provisioning rate
Standard assets Overdue =< 3 months 1%
Non-performing assets
Sub-standard Overdue for 3 months to 6 months 25%
Doubrful Owverduc for 6 months to 12 months 50%
Toss Overdue > 12 months or assets identified
as loss assets 100%

g. Borrowing Costs
All borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Botrowing costs consist of interest and
othet costs that the Company incurs in connection with borrowing of funds. Ancillary borrowing costs
in the nature of discount on securities are amortized over the tenure of the loan o straight line basis.

h. Taxes
Tax expense compriscs current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961.
Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences berween taxable income and accounting
income for the period and reversal of timing differences of earlier periods.

Defersed tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets ate recognised only to the cxtent that there is reasonable
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realised.

In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation ot carry forward tax losses, all deferred
tax assets ate recognised only if there is a virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they
can be realised against future taxable profits.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets of carlier years are re-assessed and recognised to the extent that it has
- become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the casc may be that future taxable income will be

"



Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

available against which such deferred tax asscts can be realised. The carrying amount of defetred tax
assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

The Company writes-down the cartying atnount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer
treasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent

that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable
income will be available.

Investment in Trust is regarded as “pass through” for computation of tax liability and accordingly the
Company accrues the tax liability in respect of the income earned by the Trust in the capacity of the
sole beneficiary in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961,

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the cxtent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specificd period. In the
year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be tecognized as an asset in accordance with the
recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Charteted Accountants of
lndia, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as
MAT credit entiflement. The Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date and writes down
the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to
the effect that Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

i. Earnings per equity share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average aumber of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of diluted earnings per share, the niet profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shatcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shates.

j. Provisions and contingent liabilities

A ptovision is recognised when the Company has a present obligarion as a result of past event Le., it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a
religble estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and ate determined
based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at
cach balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best cstimates. A disclosure of the
contingent liability is made when there is a possible or a present obligation that may, but probably will
not, require an outflow of resources.




Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All 2mounts in T unless otherwise stated)

3 Share Capital

31 March 2017 31 Masch 2016

Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised share capital:
Equity shares of ¥10 each 7,500,000 75,000,000 7,500,000 75,000,000
Preference shares of T10 each 41,000,000 410,060,000 41,000,000 410,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
LEquity shares of T10 cach 6,101,504 61,015,040 4,748,267 47,482,670
10% Compulsenly Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares
("COCCPS™ of T10 each - - 520,000 5,200,000

6,101,504 61,015,040 5,268,267 52,682,670
{a} Reconciliation of Shares:
31 Macch 2017 31 March 2016

Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares of T10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year 4748267 47,482,670 5,268,267 52,682,670
Add: Issued during the year 1,353,237 13,532,370 - -
Less: Capital reduction of equity shares - - {520,000 £5,200,000)
Balance at the end of the year 6,101,504 61,015,040 4,748,267 47,482,670
CCCPS of TD each
Balance at the beginning of the year 520,000 5,200,000 520,000 5,200,000
Tess: Converted into equity shases {520,000} (5,200,000) - -
Balance at the cnd of the year - - 520,000 5,200,000

{b) Terme and rights attached to equity shares

"The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T10 per share. Kach holder of equity shares is entitled 10 one
vate per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing general
meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion of their sharcholding.

(c} Terms and rights anached to CCCP3

The Company had issued 520,000 CCCPS of T30 each fully paid-up at par value on 4 December 2012, The holders of CCCPS were
entitled to voting rights in proportion te their shaseholding in the fully diluted equity share capiral of the Company. In the event of
liguidation of the Company, the holders of CCCP3 were entitled to receive, in preference to all other sharcholders of the Company,
an amount equal to the CCCPS investment amount along with all accrued and unpaid dividends, if any, declared by the board.
Holders of CCCPS can convert it into equity shares at any time before ten years from the date of allotment at a price which is higher
of (i) face value of shace or (if) fair market value as determined vsing valnation method agreed between investor, key shareholders and
the Company. During the year, CCCPS were conveted into 17,366 cquity shares of 210 each fully paid-up at premium of T 289.43 per
share on February 23, 2017.

{d) Shareholdess holding more than five percent shares in the Company

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Number % Number %
Equity shares of T 10 cach
Gray Ghost Microfinance Fund, 11 1,504,663 24.66% 1,671,493 35.20%
Stichting Hivos-Triodos Fonds 1,144,979 18.77% 1,144,979 24.11%
Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij voor 851,074 13.95% 851,074 17.92%
Ontwikkelingslanden N.Y.
SIDBI Trustee Company Limited A/ e Samridhi Fund 1,335,871 21.89%% - 0.00%
Caspian Impact Investment Adviser Private Timited 768,134 12.59% 583,938 12.30%
CCCPS of T 10 each

520,000 100.00%

Caspian Impact Investment Adviser Private Limited - -

As per records of the Company, ineluding its tegister of shareholders/members and other declarations reccived from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding sepresents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.



Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
Notes 10 the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

(¢) Buy-back and capital reduction of equity shares during 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet;

Number of Shares
1 April 2012 1o 31
March 2017
Aggregate number of buy-back of cquity shares 1,756,082
Aggregate number of capital reduction of cquity shares 520,000
Reserves and Surplus
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Reserve fund 40,680 40,680
Securities premium account
Balance at the beginning of the year 509,315,063 509,315,063
Add: Addition during the year 391,667,484 -
Balancc at the end of the year 900,982,547 509,315,063
Statutory reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 83 785,653 70,356,351
Add: Transfer from Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 8,178,536 13,429,302
Balance at the end of the year 91,964,189 83,785,653
Capital redemption reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 16,344,090 17,560,890
Less: Premivm on teduction of equity shares - (1,216,800%
Balance at the end of the year 16,344,090 16,344,090
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance ac the beginning of the year 141,200,421 89,507,267
Add: Profit for the year 40,802,679 67,146,512
Less: Dividend on CCCPS (467,288 (520,000)
less: Tax on distributed profits {95,130) {1,414,056)
Less: Transferred to Statutory Reserve (8,178,536) (13,429,302}
Balance at the end of the year 173,442,146 141,290,421
1,182,773,652 750,775,907

Statutory Reserve

In accordance with the provision of Section 43 1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 the Company being an NBFC, has

transferred 20% of net profit after tax for the year to the statutery reserve,




Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
{All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

3 Long-term borrowings
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Secured

Debentures
Non-convertible debentures - 12% Series 1 CIIPL 2019 166,080,000 166,000,000
Non-convertible debentures - 10% Series | CIIPL 2022 620,500,000 620,506,000
Non-convertible debentures - 12.08% Series 1 CIIPL 2022 336,100,000 -
Nen-convertible debenrures - 11.41% Series 1 CIIPL 2022 338,000,000 -
1,450,600,000 786,500,000
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings - {165,000,000)
1,460,600,000 620,500,000

Term loans
From other partics 150,000,000 200,000,000
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings {150,000,000) (50,0060,000)
- 150,000,000
1,460,600,000 770,500,000

(a) Non-convertible debentures - 12% Series 1 CIIPL 2019
The Company issued 1,660 secured, rated, listed, redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures of face value of
100,000 each fully paid up at a discount of 1% of face value. The debentures carry an interest rare of 12% plus tax deducted
at source. ‘I'he debentures were issued on 9 May 2014, for tenure of 60 months and will be redeemed through a bullet
repayment at maturity, however there is a call option at the cud of 2.5 years from the date of allotment. "I'he debentures along
with interest are secured by way of hypothecation/charge on certain specified book debts of the Company in favor of the
trustee for the benefit of the debenture holders.

(b) Non-convertible debentures - 10% Series 1 CITPL 2022
"T'he Company issued 6,205 secured, rated, listed, redcemable, transfcrable, non-convertible debentures of face value of
2100,000 each fully paid up at a discount of 285% of face value. The debentures carry an interest rate of 10% plus rax
deducted at source. The debentares were issued on 2 March 2015 and will be redeemed through a bulflet repayment at
maturity on 22 January 2022, however there is a call option at the end of 3 years from the date of allotment. The debentures
along with interest are sccured by way of h)rporhecztion/ charge on certain specified beok debts of the Company in favor of
the trustee for the benefit of the debenture holders.

(¢) Non-convertible debentures - 12.08% Series 1 CIIPL 2022
The Company issued 3,361 secured, rated, listed, redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures of face value of
2100,000 each fully paid up at a discount of 2% of face value. The debenturcs carry an interest rate of 12.08% plus tax
deducted at source. The debentures are issucd on 5 Aprdl 2016 and are redeemable through a bullet repayment at maturity on
2 January 2022, however there is a call option at the end of 3 years from the date of allotment. The debentures along with
interest are secured by way of hypothecation/ charge on certain specified book debts of the Company in faver of the tustee
for the benefit of the debenture holders.

{d) Non-convertible debentures - 11.41% Series 1 CIIPL 2022
The Company issued 3,380 secured, rated, listed, redecmable, teausferable, non-convertible debentures of face value of
2100,000 each fully paid up at a discount of 3.05% of face value, L'he debentures carry an interest rate of 11.41% plus @ax
deducted at source. The debentures were issucd on 19 August 2016 and are redeemable through a bullet repayment at
maturity on 2 January 2022, however there is a call option af the end of 3 years from the date of allotment. The debentures
along with interest are secured by way of hypothecation/ charge on certain specified book debts and or lien on fixed deposits
of the Company in favor of the trustee for the benefit of the debenture holders.

(¢} Term loans from Others
The term loan amounting to 3200,000,000 carries an interest rate of 13.50% pa. and is repayable in four equal quarterly
payments after an initial moratorium of rwelve months, The term loan is sceured by way of first pari-passu charge over hook
debts other than those mentioned in note 5{a) to {d) of the Company amounting to 120% of principal outstanding,

:V&to,.. I%‘/



Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(Al amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

6 Provisions

Long term
Contingent provisions against standard assets

Provisions against non performing assets

Short-term

Contingent provisions against standard assets

7 Short-term borrowings

Secured

Loan repayable on demand from bank
I.oan from others

Unsecured

Loan repayable on demand from bank

(a) Secured, loans repayable on demand from bank

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
8,035,399 8,425,069
; 3,125,000
8,035,399 11,550,069
14,092 224 9,336,559
14,092,224 9,336,559
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
10,002,973 ;
- 176,244,131
10,002,973 176,244,131
- 52,430,130
10,002,973 228,674,261

The working capital demand loan facility amounting to 210,002,973 (31 March 2016: INID carries an interest rate of the
bank's MCLR {currently 9.10%) + 110 bps (.e. 10.20% p.a). The loan is sceured by way of first pari-passu charge over book
debts other than those mentioned in note 5{a) to (d) of the Company amounting to 125% of principal outstanding.

{b) Secured loans from others

‘I'he loan amounting to TN (31 March 2016: T176,244,131) carried an interest rate of 13.50% p.a. The term loan was secured
by way of first pari-passu charge over book debts other than those mentioned in note 5{a} to {d} of the Company amounting

ta 100% of principal outstanding,

(c) Unsecured, loans repayable on demand from bank

The working capital loan facility carried an interest rate of 10.75% p.a. The loan waz sceured against 110% value of cash

collateral standing in the name of Caspian Capital Parmers.

8 Other Current Liabilitics

Statutory liabilities
Proposed dividend on CCCPS
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Current maturities of long term botrowings

Other payables

31 Masch 2017 31 March 2016
230,454 2.486,158
; 520,000
51,616,925 25,834,818
150,000,600 216,000,000
3,964865 2,458,041
205,812,244 247,299,017




Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

92 Investments

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Non-current  Current

Non-current  Current

Non-trade investments

In debentures, Ungquoted

100 (31 March 2016:Nil } 15.50% rated, subordinated, unsecured,
listed, redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures of
1,000,000 each fully paid in Satin Credit Care Network Limited

100,000,000

(&) 100,000,000

In mutual funds, Quoted, {(at lower of cost or fair valuc)
(market value: ¥136,900,121)

26,647 {31 March 2016: Nil) units of HDDFC Liquid Funds - Dircct - 85,052,765 - -
Plan - Growth Option
236,977 (31 March 2016: Nil) units Birla Sun Life Savings Funds - - 50,892,235 - -
Direct plan
{B) - 135,945,000 - -
Others, Unquoted
Investment in pass through certificates - 10,358,755 - -
Investment in commescial paper - 143,456,100
(%) - 153,814,855 - -
Trade investments
In equity shares, unquoted
2,142.858 (31 March 20106: 2,142,858} equity shares of 10 each
fully paid in A Little World Private Limited 13,757,150 - 60,000,000 -
466,850 (31 March 2016: 466,850) cquity shares of F10 each fully
paid in Sonata Finance Private Limited 28,408,501 - 28,408,501 -
I 42,165,651 - 88,408,501 -
Others, Unquoted
Bellwether Microfinance T'rust ("I'rust™ [Refer (b) below] 14,308,970 - 23,209,710 -
(E)y 14,308,970 - 23,200,710 -
Total investments (A+B+C+D+E) 156,474,621 289,759,855 111,618,211 -
a) Additional disclosure 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Unguoted investments 310,289,476 111,618,211
Quoted Investments 135,945,000 -
Investments written-off/ provided for 46,242,830 20,845 449
b) Disclosure of assets held by the Trust
672,292 (31 March 2016: 1,071,871) cquity shares of T10 each fully 14,258,970 22,733,836
paid in Sonata Finance Private Limited
Balances with banks in current accounts 50,000 475,874
Total assets held by the Trust 14,308,970 23,209,710
10 Deferred tax assets
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
On account of provision for standard assets 7,316,056 5,872,527
On account of provision for sub-standard asscts - 1,033,219
On account of provision for doubtful advances 1,785,948 1,122,003
On account of investment written-off and carry forward of long-term capital loss - 6,762,979



Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

11 Loans and advances

Long-term

Loans to customers {Refer note 19)
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good

Unsccured, considered good
Income tax {net of provisions}
MAT credit entitlement
Advances to related partics

Short-term

1oans to customers {Refer note 19)
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered pood
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Unsecured, considered good
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be recetved
Prepaid expenses

Unsecured, considered doubtful
Balances with government authoritics
Less: Provision for doubtful advances

12 Other assets

Non-curtent

Unsecured, considered good
Unamaortised portion of discount on non-convertible debentures
Unamortised peortion of origination fees

Current
Unsecured, considered good
Unamortized portion of discount on non-convertible debentures
Unamortised portion of origination fees
Interest earncd but not duc on loans
Interest acerued on fixed deposits
Others

13 Cash and Cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- on current ACCOUNts
- on deposit accounts

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
480,433,726 618,539,554
223186211 223,967,308
703,539,937 842,506,862

28,632,430 11,244,718
29,660,296 32,931,110
2,000,000 -
763,852,657 886,682,650
859,602,039 751,053,188
305,805,538 182,602,680

- 25,000,000
1,255,407,577 958,655,368
1,850 -

220 581 -
231,431 -
5,401,650 3,303,530
5,401 650 3,393,530
1,255,639,008 058,635,868

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

21,618,301 12,983,945

4 858,045 5,741,326
26,476,436 18,725,271
5,975,442 2,919,939
883,281 883,281
4,891,857 3,389,649
932,003 170,067
50,202 y
12,732,825 7,362,936

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

175,749,676 72,146,323
256,363,953 3,329,938
432,113,029 76,076,261

s



Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

{(all atnounts in T unless otherwise stated)

14 Revenue from operations

15

16

17

I. Loan portfolio
Interest income
Loan processing fee

IL. Investment portfolio
Profit on sale of investment, net
Interest income on investments

IIL. Other operating income
Interest income from fixed deposits
Profit on sale of mutual funds

Other iIncome

Miscellancous tncome

Finance cost

Interesr expense
Other borrowing costs

Other expenses

Legal and professional charges
Guarantee fees

Directors sitting fec
Membership fee

Amortization expenses
Provision for doubtful advances
Mecting expenses

Contribution towards corporate social responsibility

Rates and taxes
Insurance

Tnvestments written-off

Louns wrtten-off {net of third party guarantees)

TPayment to auditors

- As auditor

- For certification

- For reimbursement of expenses
Bank charges
Miscellaneous expenses

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
269,496,444 210,843 313
10,722 500 12067 500
280,218,944 222,910,813
58,254,827 -
13,790,293 .
72,045,120 B
20,984,708 9,553,717
11,775,525 ;
32,760,233 9,553,717
385,024,297 232,464,530
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
645902 1,683,492
645,902 1,683,492
31 Masch 2017 31 March 2016
189,833,239 100,113,736
9,751,100 5,827,698
199,584,339 105,041,434
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
6,435,502 4,568,587
3,150,643 1,452,678
2712375 1,858,024
321419 .
- 1,637,014
2,008,120 1,158,358
99,318 824,697
2,824,000 2,282.322
1,878,145 410,220
213,575 228164
46,242 850 .
12,500,000 -
1,186,588 1,052,650
215,587 84,270
42,155 13,715
23,097 44,734
554,508 325,450
80,403,882 15,940,883




Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
{All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

18 Additional disclosures pursuant to Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by the RBI

As at 31 March 2017

Amount Amount
Outstanding Overdue
Liabilities side:
(I} Loans and advances availed by the INBF(s inclusive of interest accrued thereon but
not paid:
{2} Debentures
Secured 1,512,216,925 -

Unsecured -
(other than falling within the meaning of public depusits)
(b) Deferred Credits - -
{c) Term Loans 150,000,000 -
() Inter-corporate loans and borrowings - -
{e) Commercial paper

) Other loans (overdraft) 10,002,973 -
As at
Asgets gide: 31 March 2017
(2) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills reccivables (Other than those included in (3) below):
{a) Sccured 1,340,035 765
b Unsecured 618,911,749

(3) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities:

() Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:

a} financial lease -
b} operating lease _
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

a} assets on hire

b) repossessed Asscts -
(it} Other loans counting towards AFC activities:

a} loans where asscts have been repossessed -
b) loans other than (4} above -

() Brezkup of investments

Cuzrent investments:
T Quoted
(0 Shares:

{(a) Fauity

{b} Preference -
(i} Debentures and Bonds -
(U1 Usnits of mutual funds 135,945,000
{1v) Government Sccurities -
(¥) Others {pass through certificates and commercial paper) -

2 Unquoted
(& Sharcs:
(&) Hquity
(b} Preference )
{) Decbentures and Bonds
() Units of mutual funds B

{iv} Government Securitics -
153,814,855
(¥} Others

47




Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited

Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

Long term investments:

T Quoted
i) Shares:
{a) Equity

(b} Preference
(i} Idebentures and Bonds
(u} Units of mutual funds
{iv} Government Sccurities

V) Others

2 Unquoted
@) Shares:

(@) Equity

(b} Preference
() Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual funds
(¥) Government Securities
(%) Others

(5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets finaneed as in (2) and
(3) above:

Category
1. Related Parties
(#) Subsidiaries
{b} Companies in the same group
(¢} Other related pardes
2. Other than related parties
Total

{6) investor group-wisc classification of all investments {current and
long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)

Category

1. Related parties

2 Other than related parties
Total

As at
31 March 2017

42,165,651

100,000,000

14,308,970

Net of provision as at 31 March 2017

Secured Unsecured Total
1,326,635,407 612,722,632 1939,358,039
1,326,635,407 612,722,632 1,939,358,039

Market value/

Break up ot fair  Book value (net
value or NAV  of provisions)

14,308,970 14,308,970
430,342,478 429,387,357

444,651,448 443,696,327

Al invesinents are in xnguoted companies wihem markef salue is wot asceriainable, excepi invesimends in wintwal frnds.

{7 Other Information

{{) Gross Non-Performing Assets

{2} Related Partics

{b) Orther than related parties

{i} Net Non-Performing Assets

(=} Related Paries

{b} Other than related parties

(i) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debr

As at 31 March 2017




Caspian Impact Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Masch 2017
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

19 Loans to customers

Loans to customers portfolio has been chssified in accordance with the dircctives issued by the RBI Non-Banking Financial
Company - Non-systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, read with accounting
policy mentioned in note 2(f). The necessary provisions as per the RBI norms have been made. The details are as follows:

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Standard asscts

Classification criteria 0-3 Months 0-3 Months
Amount outstanding®* . 2,212,762,369 1,776,162,730
Provision made against the standard assers 22,127,623 17,761,628

*Hincludes investment in debentures, pass through certificates and comemercial paper).

Non-performing assets

Classification crteria for Sub-standard assets > 3 Months = 3 Months
Amount outstanding . - 25,000,000
Provision made against the sub-standard assets - 3,125,000
Current year addition to provisions - 3,125,000

20 Related party disclosures

(@) Names of the related parties and naturc of relationship
Names of related parties Nature of relationship
Caspian Impact Investment Adviser Private Limired
Caspian Capital Partners ("CCP™

Ensty in which a Director has control

SIDBI Trustee Company Limited A/c Samtidhi Fund Shareholder having significant influence

(b) Transactions with related parties
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Caspian Impact Investment Adviser Private Limited
Investment advisory fee 44,145,604 36,098,170

() Balances receivable/(payablc):
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Caspian Impact Invesrment Adviser Private Limited (3.818,903) (3,093,482}
SIDBI Trustee Company Limited A/¢ Samedhi Fund 2,000,000

Note: Refer note 7 (¢} for guarantees received.

21 Segment reporting
The Company operates in a single reportable segment L.c. providing finance to companies engaged in impact investment sectors,
which have stmilar risks and returns for the purpose of AS 17 on ‘Segment Reporting’. The Company docs not have any
reportable geographical segment.

22 Expenditure in foreign currency
31 March 2017 31 Masch 2016
Travel and related cxpenses - 347 668
Guarantee fecs 359,932 -
369,932 347,668
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Masch 2017
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

23 Earnings per equity share [EPES]

a)

b)

26

27

31 Masch 2017 31 March 2016

Computation of profit for the year

Profit for the year 40,892,679 67,146,512
Less: Dividend on CCCPS (including dividend distribution tax) 562,418 625,862
Profit atrributable to equity shareholders 40,330,261 66,520,650
Profit actributable to equity shareholders for compuration of basic EPES 40,330,261 66,520,650
Profit areributable to equity shareholders for computation of diluted EPES 40,892,679 67,146,512

Computaticn of weighted average number of equity shares in computation of
basic and diluted EPES

Weighted average number of shares considered for computation of basic EPES 5,492 944 5,224 223
Add: Effect of potential dilutive shares 15,653 30,931
Weighted average number of shares considered for computation of diluted EPES 5,508,597 5,255,154

Additional disclosuses pursuant to clause X of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013
Derails of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the perod from November 8, 2016 t¢ December 30, 2016
are as follows:

] Other
Derails Specified Bank denpmination,

Notes

notes

Closing cash in hand as on § November 2016 - -
Add: Permitted receipts - -
Less: Permitted payments - -
Less: Amount deposited inn cash - -
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016 - -

Based on information available with the Company, as on balance sheer date, there are no supplicrs who are registered as micro
and small cnterprises under the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The Company has reccived tax demands aggregating to 317,333,060, The mznagemenr, on the basis of legal advice, has made
sufficient provision in the books of zccounts and believes that no further Labiliry will arisc.

Comparatives
Previous year figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary, to conform te cuzrent year presentaton.

This is summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information refered to in our report
of even date.

Wol lu (hdde £620€

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of
Chartered Accountants
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